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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located on a working farm, La Grange is a remarkably well preserved 

example of a federal style brick manor house. The house is erected on a 

familiar Delaware five-bay center hall plan and includes attached dependencies 

which were built contemporaneously with the main structure.

On the interior, the detailing is elegant, but not elaborate. The first 

floor contains chair railing throughout and an elaborate molding trim with 

bulls-eye corner blocks. A finely detailed fireplace mantel stands in the east 

room, or parlor is composed of a bulls-eye detailed bolection molding, reeded 

pilasters, punch and gouge shelf moulding, and a center panel medallion. A 

similar, though more conservatively detailed, mantel is located in the west room, 

or dining room. In addition, side cupboards are included in the west fireplace 

breast and a cupboard is cut into the rear, or north wall. The hall features an 

open staircase with a reeded enclosed stringer.

The' second floor plan differs from the first with the addition of a small 

room located to the front of the hall, and by a partition forming two chambers to 

the west of the hall. These rooms are very simply detailed with small corner 

fireplaces and ogee molding trim. The chamber to the east of the hall is more 

finely appointed and features a reeded mantel.

The south facade of La Grange is laid in flemish bond and features a 

simple box cornice. The foundation walls are laid in stone; there is neither a 

water table nor a belt course. The entry is finely detailed by an arched surround 

with reeding and a keystone, and is surmounted by a semicircular light. A one- 

story Roman Doric portico, added at a later date, now covers the entrance.
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7. DESCRIPTION (continued)  

The rear of the house is extended to the north by two attached dependencies. 

Originally with shed roofs, each wing has been raised to a two-and-a-half story 

gabled structure. The western wing is two bays in length and was used as a smoke 

house. The eastern wing is a four-bay, two room plan structure with a center 

chimney; in plan, the kitchen, or eastern, wing is much like a separate hall and 

parlor house. Although each of these wings adjoins the main house, there is no 

indication that either originally communicated directly with the main rooms. An 

enclosed addition, containing modern facilities, presently joins the house with the 

two attached dependencies.
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STATEMENT O F SI GNI Fl C AN C E

La Grange is situated in Pencader Hundred on what was originally the "Welsh 

Tract," 30,000 acres granted by William Penn to William Davis, David Evans, 

and William Willis in 1701. By 1792 Robert Middleton had acquired some land 

near Aikentown, now called Glasgow, and in 1799 a little over 225 acres was sold 

to Samuel H. Black. Having established a medical practice in the area, 

Dr. Samuel IJlack built his house, La Grange, in 1815. Two years later, he 

married Dorcas A. Middleton, the daughter of Robert Middleton.

The house, named after Lafayette's estate in France, clearly reflects the 

tastes and needs of a well-educated gentleman farmer. Samuel Black studied 

medicine at the University of Pennsylvania, and is said to have owned one of 

the finest private libraries in the state of Delaware. Moreover, he himself was 

"a popular writer on medical and agricultural topics." As a farmer and a man 

of science, he conducted controlled experiments with various fertilizers and 

cultivation techniques to help improve crop yields. Dr. Black was elected to 

several sessions of the Delaware General Assembly and served as one of the 

trustees for Delaware College during its formative years. He was at one time 

a candidate for United States Senator.
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8. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (continued)——

Samuel Black also excelled as a physician; he is remembered as one of the 

leaders of Delaware medicine. Much of his work centered on the advocacy of 

vaccination as a preventive to disease. To prove his stand, Dn Black vaccinated 

his son, Robert, and subsequently exposed him to several smallpox cases. The 

success of this graphic demonstration insured the continuance of smallpox 

vaccination in Delaware.

After Samuel H. Black's death in 1827, La Grange was conveyed to Robert 

M. Black by an Orphans Court partition in 1835. Robert M. Black, like his father, 

served in the Delaware General Assembly.
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